
 1 

NATIONAL BENCH REST SHOOTERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 13, 2025 
BENCH REST RIFLE CLUB OF ST. LOUIS, MO 

 
The annual meeting of the NBRSA BOARD OF DIRECTORS was called to order by 
President, Mr. Mike Conry at 8:56 am CST on Saturday, September 13, 2025.   In attendance 
were: 
 

Mike Conry, President 
Wayne Campbell, Vice President 

Pam Campbell, Secretary 
Pat Reagin, Eastern Regional Director 

Joe Duke, Gulf Coast Regional Director 
Jim Shipley, Mid-Continent Alternate Regional Director 

Bud Mundy, Mississippi Valley Regional Director 
Dan Zaccanti, Northwest Regional Director 
Wayne Moore, Southeast Regional Director 

Ed Adams, Mid-Continent Regional Director – Elect 
Jack Neary – Target and Website Chairman 

Steve Lee, Bughole Programmer 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on March 16, 2025 were previously approved by email.  Mr. 
Zaccanti, Mr. Creach, Mr. Moore, Mr. Duke, Mr. Reagin, and Mr. Harris all approved the 
minutes. Mr. Mundy did not respond.  Mr. Sosenko left the meeting. 
 
Mr. Conry called on Mr. Jack Neary, Chairman of the Target and Website committees.  Mr. 
Neary took the floor and discussed working with our webmaster, Ms. Jess Tessman about our 
website.  He wants to have her update the home page. She wants some pictures to work with 
and she has recommended Mr. Neary get a professional photographer.  He will check on that 
and see if it worth the cost.  He wants to use our President on that page at a range.  He has 
selected different people from the different disciplines to promote each discipline.  He is also 
working on what our statement is and that he wants to make a better impact on the public 
when they open up the website.  Ms. Tessman is currently booked out for 8 weeks before she 
can accomplish this mission.   
 
Mr. Mundy says St. Louis has a professional photographer that lives here if we need one. Mr. 
Neary says he has received positive feedback from the members.  He stated with the last 
revision we made it is much more user friendly.   Mr. Moore asked if it was possible for the 
website information to feed over into the facebook page.  Mr. Neary stated the Mr. Brian 
Robinson is in charge of Facebook/Social Media.  Mr. Neary asked if there were any 
questions. 
 
Mr. Conry then asked Mr. Neary to give his Target paper report. Mr. Neary has contacted a 
number of new paper choices.  Mr. Neary did find some very nice target paper.  The cost 



 2 

would be very attractive at $.18 plus shipping per target.  They require a commitment of 
44,000 targets per year. He has shot 6 different loads and thinks this paper is pretty good. He 
passed around a sample to the directors.  He stated that Mr. Harris had found some paper 
several years ago that could be imported from France at a cost of $.05 for the paper plus 
shipping it from France and that does not include the printing of the target.  Mr. Neary said 
Mr. Harris has not gotten back not to him on this.  The final sample he discussed he does not 
think it is the best paper.  If we find new target paper it will be $.75. -$1.00 per target. He 
stated the company we are now using has been a great company to work with and their prices 
of $ .15 per target includes the shipping.    
 
He asked Mrs. Campbell if she agreed concerning the target company since she is the one 
who handles the targets.  Mrs. Campbell told the board that Targetsonline is great.  If and 
when we have any issues, they take care of the issues and do it very quickly.  She also stated 
that several match directors loved the paper we are now using when it rains.  She told the 
board that they say the coating keeps the targets together.   Mr. Campbell took the floor and 
said he sees no need to change.   Mr. Shipley took the floor and stated that this paper stands 
up against morning dew also.  Mr. Neary says finding better paper without the cost being 
outrageous is a big issue. Mr. Conry asked if any questions for Mr. Neary. 
 
Mr. Conry called on the Mr. Neary to read the Social Media Manager’s report, Mr. Brian 
Robinson who was not present. He stated that Mr. Robinson is very grateful for the position 
and wanted him to thank the Board for allowing his to fill this role.  In his report he stated 
that he had created an email list for all Match Directors and Regional Directors and had 
reached out to them providing instructions and the new procedure for sending the match 
results, he had worked with Mr. Steve Lee on getting bughole reports redirected to the new 
email, worked with Ms. Jesse Tessman on learning how to update and edit the nbrsa.org 
website. In his report he stated that he had continued the Member/Director/Range Spotlight 
program by reaching out to prospective members/directors who might be interested.  
 
He had received six participants (as of 8/22/25) that will be featured between the August 
2025 issue and January 2026 issue of Precision Rifleman magazine. He listed that he had 
updated the website as needed. (Important announcements, forms, new records, rules 
updates, etc). He also reported that he had created a new NBRSA Facebook group (because 
he was unable to access the old one) and that he transferred all content from old NBRSA 
Facebook page to new page. His report also included that he had started posting the 
Member/Director/Range Spotlight features (two weeks after magazine is issued so to not take 
away from the magazine) and articles from current Precision Rifleman magazine, like Jack 
Neary’s tips/tricks (also two weeks after magazine is issued).  
 
He stated he was adding links to benchrest related content from the internet (youtube videos, 
informative internet articles, etc.) and scanning articles and match reports from old Precision 
Shooting and NBRSA News that he thought people would find interesting (“Throwback 
Thursday”).  Mr. Robinson had asked Mr. Neary to ask the Directors to help with the 



 3 

Member of the Month, Match Director of the Month, Range of the Month.  Mrs. Campbell 
also commented he is doing an amazing job. He is very efficient and fast in getting items 
posted.  Mr. Neary asked if the board would allow him to continue when his 1 year contract 
ends in December.  The board all agreed to offer him the position if he is willing to continue 
in this position. Mr. Conry took the floor and stated that the website is where he goes first to 
look for match results.  Mr. Reagin says he is not online much. He stated we are still behind 
getting things posted which is not Mr. Robinson’s fault because competitors take pictures and 
post it on other facebook pages even before Mr. Robinson gets the reports in his possession.  
Mr. Neary says we can’t stop individuals from posting it first. Mr. Reagin asked Mr. Lee if 
there is a way to work with bughole to get it posted faster.  Mr. Conry thanked Mr. Neary for 
the reports.  
 
Mr. Conry called on Mr. Steve Lee, bughole programmer. He wanted to talk about bughole 
directly to the NBRSA.  He stated he was there to talk to all the regional directors and to urge 
their match directors to send in the results as soon as possible.  He understands that some 
ranges do not have internet which means they have to take it home to post and can’t do it 
immediately after the match. He continued saying that those results go to Mr. Robinson.  
What he wants is to also send it the magazine editor.  If it goes to the editor all the match 
directors would have to send to the Editor would be the write up. Mrs. Campbell asked for 
the floor and stated that she thinks this would be a big mistake.  She said the Editor would 
then have to piece the results with the match reports and it would be a burden for her.  She 
continued she is great at her job but she does not know the ranges and match directors.  Some 
months she gets 20 or so match reports.  She continued it could cause a big mess for her. She 
stated that herself and Mr. Conry reviews the magazine before it goes to the printer to assist 
her in making sure everything is correct.  Mrs. Campbell stated she did not see how this 
could help.  Mr. Conry agreed with her. 
 
Mr. Reagin took the floor and asked if it could go directly to the website and post?  Mr. Lee 
says it can but he is not sure he could do the web end of it to make it happen. He has been 
removed from programing for 12 years and is older and does not feel he is up to the task. He 
stated Mr. Harris had said he was going to handle that end of it but he has not seen any 
results.  Mr. Lee stated to get them to send it automatically from Bughole to the website and 
not need Mr. Robinson to post anything would require some programming.  Mr. Neary took 
the floor and asked why not reach out to Ms. Tessman to help get this done.  Mr. Moore 
asked Mr. Lee if he has anyone in mind to do the programming.  He stated he did not and as 
he had stated he is not able to do it.  He says we would need to hire someone.  Mr. Neary 
took the floor and asked if Ms. Tessman had someone who could write code to accomplish 
the coding would that be what Mr. Lee needed.  Mr. Moore took the floor and asked if the 
coding was what he needed to make it happen at the end of each day of the competition.   
 



 4 

Mr. Lee says there are a lot of things. Mr. Duke says he sends them in one file to the Editor.  
Mr. Reagin says he does not think we should do it. Mr. Lee says he agrees with Mrs. 
Campbell that it should go to Mr. Robinson and forget sending it directly to the Editor.  Mr. 
Neary asked if Mr. Lee wants to have a discussion with Ms. Tessman and Mr. Lee says he 
would like to have that happen to see if they can have it go directly to the website.  Mr. 
Neary will reach out to set up a meeting with the 3 of them.  Mr. Conry has one question, this 
is way out but if we have the match directors sending reports directly to the website wouldn’t 
the NBRSA lose control of what is posted?   Mr. Lee said they can only send in data directly 
from bughole.  Mr. Moore says you cannot add anything to bughole.  
 
Mr. Conry called for a break.  9:35 am. – 9:51 am. 
 
Mr. Conry called the meeting back to order and then called on Mr. Wayne Campbell, 
International Representative, to give his committee report.  Mr. Campbell took the floor and 
told the board that WBC-17 would be held immediately following the Nationals by the 
Bench Rest Club of St. Louis, in Wright City, MO. He told the board that the USA had 3 
strong teams and all should do well in the championship.  He told the Board that with 
Phoenix not hosting matches they would need to decide what ranges would host the 
upcoming qualifying matches next year for WBC-18.  He told the Board that Mr. Mike 
Conry had agreed to host a match at his range, Midland Shooters Assoc. and that would give 
the west coast side a replacement range.  He also told them that Holton Gun Club wanted to 
host a qualifier.  He said he did not see a problem with adding them and that would give the 
east coast 3 qualifiers and the west coast 3. He stated his recommendation would be allow 
Dublin, GA, Fairchance, PA and Holton, MI, St. Louis, MO, Raton, NM and Midland, TX to 
host the 2026 qualifying matches.  They will be set at 60 points at these matches.  He stated 
with the cost of traveling it would help all the competitors but it would still be the best two 
(2) matches out of 6 plus the Nationals.  
 
Mr. Campbell stated that the ranges would need to draw 60 competitors and he was 
somewhat concerned.  Mr. Moore asked if you were afraid that Holton would not draw 60?  
Mr. Campbell says it has happened at other ranges.  Mr. Reagin says he does not think they 
will have any problems in getting 60.  Mr. Reagin says they just hosted a regional 4 gun 
which had been a 3 gun and had a good turnout.  Mr. Reagin says they would love to host a 
qualifier.  Mr. Reagin says with the upgrades they deserve it.  Mr. Shipley asked for the floor 
and stated that his concern is that the qualifiers hurt the smaller matches because people will 
go to the qualifiers.  Mr. Shipley says their member attendance has dropped this year at his 
matches.  Mr. Zaccanti took the floor and stated he thinks the expense is a big reason why the 
attendance is down.  Mr. Campbell took the floor back and informed the board that the 
location of the next world championship would not be decided until next Sunday night at the 
International meeting. He says it looked like it could go to Holton Gun Club but now it looks 
like another country may bid.  Mr. Conry asked for a motion.   
 
Mr. Reagin made the motion to approve the recommendation of the 6 qualifying ranges 
to host the qualifying matches for WBC-18.  Mr. Zaccanti second the motion.  Mr. Conry 



 5 

asked for discussion. Mr. Campbell stated that this gives the competitors more opportunities 
with maybe less traveling to qualify. Mr. Reagin stated it is 60 points per grand with no limit 
on points at the Nationals, correct? Mr. Campbell answered “that is correct”.  Mr. Moore 
asked what counts? Mr. Campbell stated the light and heavy grand. Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, 
Mr. Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti and Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  Motion 
passed unanimously.   
 
Mr. Conry then called for the Score Committee and World Record Committee Report.  Mr. 
Carpenter, Chairman, was not in attendance but had sent a report. Mr. Conry called on Mr. 
Zaccanti to read the report.  Mr. Zaccanti reported that during the last year they had been no 
new world record targets submitted to the committee.  Mr. Conry asked if there were any 
questions. 
 
Mr. Conry called for the LR World Records Committee report.  Mr. Jeff Locke, Chairman 
was not in attendance. Mr. Conry asked Mr. Zaccanti if he received a report from Mr. Locke.  
Mr. Zaccanti reported that he did not receive a report but the last time he talked to him there 
had been no new world records submitted.  
 
Mr. Conry called for the Nominating Committee report, Mr. Wayne Moore, Chairman. Mr. 
Moore took the floor and stated that next year the President and Vice President position 
would expire.  Mr. Moore reported that due to the circumstances that happened last year with 
the resignation of Mr. David Woodward and the fact Mr. Wayne Campbell, Vice President 
did not feel he could take the position at this time due to various reasons, they had reached 
out to all eligible candidates and Mr. Mike Conry and Mr. Dan Zaccanti had agreed to fill the 
position.  A special election was held in January and Mr. Mike Conry received the most 
votes.  He assumed the position of President as of February 1, 2025 and Mr. Campbell 
resumed the position as the Vice President. Mr. Zaccanti commented that both are doing a 
good job.   
 
Mr. Conry called for a break.  10:08 am -10:18 am.  
 
Mr. Conry called the meeting back to order and then called on Mrs. Campbell to give the 
Business Management report.  Mrs. Campbell took the floor and asked the directors to follow 
along in their manuals.  She first covered the statistical data which includes membership 
trends and stated that memberships are remaining steady and not much change over the last 8 
½ years. She then covered the match schedule attendance report where they could actually 
see how many people attended each match in their region and all of the other regions. She 
stated that attendance is down at the matches but with all the factors involved from aging 
members and medical issues to traveling expenses and rising cost of gas and hotels; it’s not a 
surprise.  She then discussed the club match payment delinquencies.  She stated overall all 
the ranges paid really well this year but did have a couple ranges that went into the 60 day 
late category.  She stated that all the ranges are now current with payments this week. 
 
She then asked the directors to review the Election Statistics from the 2025 Election of 
Directors.  She stated there were no issues with this election even though several regions had 



 6 

competition with 2 members seeking the Regional Director/Alternate director positions and 
there were some write-ins. She thanked Mr. Dan Zaccanti for all of his assistance to her over 
the last 8 1/2 years and that he would be missed as a member of the Board.  She moved on to 
review the target sales and inventory.  She commended the vendor, Targetsonline, for being a 
great partner in providing exceptional service to the NBRSA and our clubs over the years but 
there were a few issues this past year with them moving locations, causing delays in filling 
our orders and printing needed targets.  She told the board that one range had complained the 
targets were not cut to size but overall still a great company to work with.   
 
Her next item for discussion was her role as Advertising Manager.  She stated she reached 
out to over 40 old, new and current advertisers, some more than once.  We currently have 30 
current advertisers.  We lost 21st Century Innovation, a full page advertiser this year, PRP 
Bullets – a ¼ page ad and Dennis Wagner a ¼ - 3 times a year.  Edgewood Bags went from a 
½ page ad to a full page ad in May and Bruno Shooters Supply added an additional full page 
ad in June for a couple months.  She stated she just secured a new ½ page ad for 12 months 
with Geissele Automatics so these additions help cover the advertising we lost.  Advertising 
is getting harder and harder.   
 
The projected cost of producing the magazine in 2025 should stay right around last year at 
$57,500.00 but postage did increase in July as it did in 2024. (2024 magazine and mailing - 
$38,900.00, Editor contract - $12,000.00 and ad commission - $6,600.00.)  That includes the 
cost of printing and mailing the magazine, which postage increased, along with the Editors 
contract expense, and then my same advertising commission.  We sold $57,575.00 in ads for 
2024 and funded the entire cost of the 2024 magazine.  We have sold $52,800.00 so far this 
year so we are short for 2025 at this point with the loss of the businesses mentioned. 
 
She continued saying as always, she is constantly working to obtain new advertisers but can’t 
get a commitment. She commented a number of them said they were too busy now or 
because of short supply of items they did not want any more business.  I’m hoping this will 
change as time goes on and a few will come on board with us. 
 
She then stated in closing she had a request.  There appears to be rumors about the Cactus 
and that it will be a registered World Team qualifier under Freedom Benchrest.  For clarity 
purposes for our members, I am asking the board for permission to run a full page notice 
outlining the World Team Qualifiers for WBC-18 in the December and January magazines at 
no cost. After discussion, it was decided this was a great idea to help the members. Mr. 
Zaccanti made a motion that the business manager be allowed to run the ad at no cost 
in the December and January magazine.  Mr. Reagin second the motion. Mr. Conry 
called for a vote.  Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti and Mr. 
Moore all voted for the motion.  Motion passed unanimously.  She then asked if there were 
any questions?  
 
Mr. Conry thanked her and returned to the floor.  He stated that each of them had been given 
a handout report from the Editor, Ms. Lisa Stippich.  He asked them to take a few minutes to 



 7 

review.  Mr. Conry stated that it was a very good report and that all seems to be going well.  
Mr. Reagin says he thinks she does a good job.   
 
Mr. Conry then called on Mr. Harris for the Financial Officer’s report.  Mr. Harris was not 
present but sent a report. Each director was given a copy of the Financial Report.  Mr. Conry 
then read the report. The report stated that it covers the period from September 1, 2024 to 
August 31, 2025. This is not our tax fiscal year so please be aware that you may witness the 
official annual report for the year ending December 31, 2025 and it will not correlate. 
 
Starting at the net income line. our profit for the period under review has dropped from $29k 
to $1k. This is a 97% drop in net income. I will attempt to isolate the matters that contribute 
to the decline in net income. 
 
Advertising Revenue: although not significant, advertising revenue has dropped almost 10% 
this period. This is not surprising considering the relatively tough economy we have faced 
over the last few years. 
 
Target sales, which are somewhat indicative of shooters activity, have dropped 24% from 
$15k to $11k. 
 
Membership dues are down 12% with a decline of $8k over the period. Again, this is likely 
in tandem with shooter activity. 
 
Board officer expenses indicate that they are up $11k for the year from $4k in 2024. This is 
not an accurate representation due to the timing difference of our financial reports for the 
annual board meeting. Our 2024 report excludes expenses from 2023 for a similar reason 
presenting last years expenses as lower than actual. We report on the cash basis. Reporting 
using the accrual basis would smooth out these timing differences along with a change in the 
financial year end to align with the activities of the organization. 
 
Our Professional Fees have increased very little (3%) so this does not contribute much to the 
decline in profitability. 
 
We are faced with a $31k decline in net income this year resulting in a loss of $8k. We 
earned interest of $9k (35% up from 2024) which avoided a net loss of the period under 
review. I would bring attention to the important metric being the loss before interest income. 
Attention needs to be on increasing advertising revenue and membership fee revenues. Any 
unlikely reduction in expenses will not contribute largely toward future profitability. 
 
The balance sheet is once again sound. We have no debt with $205k in near cash which is 
$8k less than this time last year. 
 
Submitted by:  Chris Harris, Financial Officer 
 



 8 

Mr. Mundy asked for the floor.  He asked how many members are we going to lose out there 
because of the Murdica mess?  He stated that Mr. Murdica is controlling everything. He 
stated that he is very frustrated with it all.  He continued saying the people out there don’t 
want to lose that range. They can’t even practice out there now.  Mr. Conry asked how are 
you out of practice days?  Mr. Munday stated the Mr. Dan Sutton did have a list of dates but 
he didn’t know if they got approved or not.  He stated again everything is a mess.   Mr. 
Conry informed the board there was a meeting at a match at Northern Colorado and as he 
understands it the members/clubs in those regions are going to stay with the NBRSA.   
 
He informed the board that one of the ranges has already renewed even though they don’t 
expire until November 30, 2025 and those associated with that club have renewed their 
membership.  Mr. Mundy stated he hopes so because it is a mess in Phoenix.  Mr. Campbell 
asked for the floor and stated it will remain a mess until some changes are made out there.  
Mr. Mundy stated he is going to try to help get it straight.  Mr. Conry says no one really 
knows what is going on.   
Mrs. Campbell took the floor to answer Mr. Mundy’s question concerning the loss of 
members.  She told the board that in spite of all the issues members from that area are 
renewing their memberships.  Mr. Mundy was glad to hear that information.   
 
Mr. Conry called for a vote on the financial report.  Mr. Duke made a motion to accept the 
report.  Mr. Moore second the motion.  Mr. Conry asked if there were any discussion?  Mr. 
Conry called for a vote.  Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti and 
Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  Motion passed unanimously.   
Mr. Conry moved to the next committee report, the World Records Committee, which is 
chaired by himself.  There have been 5 records set.  He continued saying Mr. Gary Ocock 
shot a record.   He stated he has submissions from 8 places, 4 are pending.   Mr. Conry asked 
if there were any questions.  Mr. Zaccanti asked about the set submitted from his region.  Mr. 
Conry stated they are not final.  They are moving through the committee.  He asked if there 
were any questions.   
 
Mr. Conry also stated he is resigning as the World Record Chairman. He does not want to 
hold two positions within the organization.  He had reached to Mr. Gary Ocock to see if he 
was still interested in the position.  Mr. Ocock first told him yes and then later said no as it 
does not fit into his plans.  Mr. Conry said he then reached out to Mr. Bob Scarbrough about 
the position and he was very much interested in it and is willing to serve in that capacity. He 
also told the Board the Mr. John Horn and Mr. Lowell Frei would like to resign as part of the 
world record committee.  Mr. Conry recommended naming Mr. Scarbrough the Chairman 
and allow him to replace Mr. Horn and Mr. Frei. Mr. Campbell asked if Mr. Scarbrough 
knows that he needs to move around the country in his selection of the committee members.  
Mr. Conry stated he is aware but there have been cases where there were two members from 
the same region and it has not been a problem.   
 
He stated the rulebook says a committee member should not measure targets set in his 
region.  Mr. Reagin made a motion to nominate Mr. Bob Scarbrough as world record 
chairman and allow him to select the new committee members.  Mr. Moore second the 



 9 

motion. Mr. Conry called for a vote.  Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. 
Zaccanti and Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  Motion passed unanimously.   
 
Mr. Conry stated that since the committee chairmen are appointed for a 2 year term which 
was done in 2024 there were no other appointments in 2025 except the need to appoint a 
chairman for the Long Range World records committee.  Mr. Locke only agreed to fill this 
position for a 1 year term last year.  Mr. Conry called on Mr. Zaccanti since Mr. Locke was 
from his region.  He stated that he had talked to Mr. Locke and he was willing to serve for 
another year.  Mr. Zaccanti made a motion to appoint Mr. Jeff Locke as the LR World 
Record Committee Chairman for another year.  Mr. Duke second the motion.  Mr. 
Conry called for a vote.  Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Moore, Mr. Duke, Mr. Reagin, Mr. 
Mundy all voted for the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Conry moved on to the old business. Mrs. Campbell asked for the floor and stated the 
items in blue were listed for bookkeeping reasons so they did not fall through the cracks 
since they were continued for a 2 year trial basis instead of the normal 1 year trial basis.   
 
(No action required until 2026 Annual Board meeting by items in green – noted to keep 
it on track due to trial period of 2 years instead of one year) 
  
1). Northwest Region Agenda Items:  Requested 2 year trial period.  Since our procedure is 
a 1 year trial period, this will be continued for another 1year trial period. 
 
Last year agenda # 1). The current long range rule 6.1.7 reads as follows: 6.1.7. The 
National Champion 600 or 1,000 yards shall be determined by assigning point values based 
on the competitor's placing in the 4 "6-Target" Aggregates, i.e.: 1 point for first, 2 points for 
second, etc. The 4 "6-Target" Aggregates are as follows: Light Gun Score, Heavy Gun Score, 
Light Gun Group, and Heavy Gun Group. The lowest total score will be the National 
Champion. Any tie will be broken by the Competitor’s placing in the 12-Target Group 
Aggregate. (Effective as of 1/1/08). I propose that section 6.1.7 be rewritten/changed to read 
as follows: 24 6.1.7. The Long Range National Champion (600 or 1,000 yards) shall be 
determined by assigning point values based on the competitor's placing in the two “2-Gun” 
Aggregates, i.e.: 1 point for 1st, 2 points for second, etc. The two “2-Gun” Aggregates are as 
follows: 2-Gun Group and 2-Gun Score. The lowest point total will be the National 
Champion. Any tie will be broken by the Competitor’s placing in the 12-Target (2-Gun) 
Group Aggregate. Submitted by: Jeff Locke Mr. Woodward asked for discussion. Mr. 
Zaccanti explained the way the system works. Mr. Zaccanti stated the competitors would 
like for this to be approved for a 2 year trial period for calendar years 2025 and 2026. 
 
Mr. Woodward asked for a motion to approve rule 6.1.7 as requested above. Mr. Zaccanti 
made the motion to approve as written. Mr. Harris second the motion. Mr. Harris, Mr. 
Boyet, Mr. Ross, Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Potts, Mr. Sosenko, Mr. Conry, and Mr. Shipley all 
voted in favor of the motion. Motion passed unanimously. 



 10 

2). Last year agenda # 4). There was a set of Target rules presented to the NBRSA Board in 
Late 2022 or early 2023 which was approved on a temporary basis. Based on board approval, 
SVSC (Sacramento) shot NBRSA Registered E Target matches from March 2023 to 
December 2023. Submitted by Jeff Locke 

Previous discussion from 2024 Long Range meeting at Nationals: 

At the LR meeting, shooters voted (20Yes, 7No) in favor of giving LR Clubs the option to 
shoot NBRSA Registered 600/1000 Yard Matches on ETargets. Registered Target matches 
do not include any NBRSA 600 or 1000 Yard Nationals.  

Note:  Minutes of past Board meetings do not reflect the rules were ever approved by 
the Board. 

Mr. Zaccanti continued stating he informed the Long Range members that the rules were 
never approved by the Board.  Mr. Zaccanti explained why they want to use them. He stated 
they would like to use E targets for registered matches but at no National events for a 2 year 
trial period.  Mr. Woodward took the floor and stated they have been using them in 
nonregistered matches for several years.  Mr. Zaccanti made the motion that all ranges 
are allowed to use them at registered matches with no world records and no Nationals 
for a two year trial period.  Mr. Harris second the motion. Mr. Harris, Mr. Boyet, Mr. 
Ross, Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Potts, Mr. Sosenko, Mr. Conry, and Mr. Shipley all voted in favor of 
the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Conry took the floor back and stated at last year’s board meeting the last agenda item by 
Mr. Zaccanti would need to be discussed. He asked Mr. Zaccanti to take the floor and explain 
the item from last year and asked if he had an update on this.  Mr. Zaccanti took the floor and 
stated that the item that they were discussing was this item from last year’s meeting:  Excerpt 
from 2024 BOD meeting:  He stated he had been approached by the Long Range members at 
the Nationals to bring back the Score Long Range Nationals. Ms. Campbell took the floor 
and informed them for the ones that did not know that this Nationals was eliminated due to 
low attendance back in 2018. Mr. Zaccanti explained why they wanted to bring this back. He 
stated this would be held in a different region than the last time.  He stated they believe they 
could have 30-40 competitors.  Mr. Zaccanti made a motion to allow them to investigate 
the possibility of bringing back a Long Range Score Nationals.  Mr. Boyet second the 
motion.  Mr. Harris, Mr. Boyet, Mr. Ross, Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Potts, Mr. Sosenko, Mr. Conry, 
and Mr. Shipley all voted in favor of the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Zaccanti stated they live in a tourist high dollar area of the city and early spring or late 
fall would be the only time they could host this national because of the hotel situation.  He 
continued saying they are working on the “bugs”.  Mr. Zaccanti’s request would be to let it 
continue for another year and if they have not finalized it then drop it.  Mr. Campbell asked 
for the floor and stated it was eliminated back in 2018 due to low attendance and there were 
not enough people competing to cover the cost of the coins and patches that the NBRSA was 
providing so we were losing money. Mr. Zaccanti stated they have more members now but 



 11 

the timing is the problem.  Mr. Zaccanti made a motion to continued this for one year.  
Mr. Moore second.    Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Moore, Mr. Duke, Mr. Reagin, Mr. 
Mundy all voted for the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Conry then moved on to the New Business Agenda items.  He called on Mr. Pat Reagin, 
Eastern Region Director to proceed with his agenda items.  Mr. Reagin read his first item for 
discussion.  
 
Eastern Region Agenda items:  

1). Allow competitors that complete their targets early to remove their equipment from the 
firing line before the cease fire command with permission of fellow competitors on either 
side and range officer – Submitted by Craig Rowe  
 
Mr. Reagin stated this was submitted after the Shamrock match in Dublin, Georgia this year. 
He stated the Mr. Rowe commented “isn’t it nice that everyone gets up after they finish”.  
Mr. Reagin stated he did not think it was a good idea to allow competitors to get up and leave 
the firing line before the cease fire. He said it is very distracting for the ones still shooting 
their groups and could cause other issues.  He continued saying although he personally does 
not agree, he is representing his region.  Mr. Reagin made a motion to approve this item 
as written.  Died for lack of a second.  He then read the next item on his agenda: 
 
2). United States National Anthem to be played prior to safety brief for Match 1 – Submitted 
by Pat Reagin  
 
He submitted this item.  He would like to work it into the rules to be played before the safety 
announcement.  He continued saying most ranges do it but not all.  Mr. Shipley asked for the 
floor.  He stated that normally when the anthem is played you have a flag to salute.  He said 
they do not have a flag at the Arkansas range.  He continued saying that as a match director, 
range officer, and competitor he is rushed and it would be one more thing for him to handle.  
He opposes this idea.  Mr. Zaccanti asked for the floor and stated if you have a flag we could 
say we highly recommend you play the national anthem.  Mr. Shipley stated that his 
benchrest matches are a small part of matches at that range. He continued saying he thinks it 
should be quiet when it is played and the other parts of the range are noisy.   
 
Mr. Moore took the floor and said he personally likes it played. Mr. Conry asked if he was 
ready to make a motion. Mr. Reagin made a motion to add to the rulebook that the 
United States anthem is recommended to be played before the safety announcement if 
possible before the start of Match 1.  Mr. Zaccanti second motion.  Mr. Conry called for a 
vote.  Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Moore, Mr. Duke, Mr. Reagin, Mr. Mundy all voted for 
the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. Mr. Reagin continued with his next item: 
 
3). Encourage the use of pre-recorded range commands at registered matches. (this will allow 
the range officer to keep better tabs of the line instead of monitoring his/her clock) – 
Submitted by Pat Reagin.  



 12 

 
Mr. Reagin says this frees up the range officer to handle other things.  He stated there are a 
lot of stuff in the recording that only needs to be said one time.  He continued saying they 
had issues at Chippewa and they were running up against time constraints so they used a 
shorter version.  Mr. Mundy asked for the floor and stated some of the recordings are not 
very clear.  He continued saying the one they use here is a good recording.  Mr. Reagin stated 
he will listen this week.  He continued saying if we need to make additional copies for other 
ranges he could do it. 
 
Mr. Reagin made a motion to approve the item as written - Encourage the use of pre-
recorded range commands at registered matches. Mr. Duke second the motion. Mr. 
Conry asked if there was anymore discussion. Mr. Moore asked for the floor and wanted to 
discuss that it might be the time to include in that recording, at the beginning and end of 
commence fire, to add a tone. He continued saying several competitors had gotten burnt. He 
said this would help the hearing impaired or foreign shooters on the line. Mr. Duke took the 
floor and stated he has a program that you can type out a command.  Mr. Reagin stated he 
thinks maybe we need a committee.  Mr. Conry called for a vote. Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Shipley, 
Mr. Moore, Mr. Duke, Mr. Reagin, Mr. Mundy all voted for the motion.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Mr. Conry called for a lunch break.  11:47-12:24 pm. 
 
Mr. Conry called the meeting back to order.  He asked Mr. Reagin to continue with his 
agenda items. Mr. Reagin took the floor and read his last item: 
  
4). All changes to rules and by-laws to be highlighted on the nbrsa website for one year 
following their entry into the rulebook (this will allow match directors and members to 
instantly see changes to the rules, etc) – Submitted by Pat Reagin  
 
Mr. Reagin stated that some of our match directors have a hard time keeping up to date with 
the rule changes.  He is suggesting this to help them keep up with the changes made each 
year.  Mr. Zaccanti stated he has a similar item on the agenda for the same reason.  He has 
ranges who print the rulebook but because items are in the one year trial period they are only 
posted in the minutes and the match directors don’t always read the minutes so they are not 
aware of the changes.  Mr. Conry asked Mrs. Campbell if this would be a problem.  She took 
the floor and stated she wanted the board to know that she and Mr. Chris Harris work 
together to update the rulebook.  That way we have 2 sets of eyes making the changes.  She 
stated that would not be a problem.  Mr. Reagin made a motion to have all changes to 
rules and by-laws to be highlighted on the NBRSA website for one year following their 
entry into the rulebook.  Mr. Moore second the motion.  Mr. Conry called for a vote.  Mr. 
Zaccanti, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Moore, Mr. Duke, Mr. Reagin, Mr. Mundy all voted for the 
motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Conry thanked him for his agenda items.  He then called on Mr. Joe Duke, Gulf Coast 
Region Director to proceed with his agenda items.  Mr. Duke read his item for discussion.  



 13 

 
Gulf Coast Region Agenda items: 

1). Extend complimentary membership to new shooters. Submitted by Mike Bryant.  

Mr. Duke continued reading the rest of the item.  It would be for someone who wants to 
shoot in a NBRSA match and has never shot in a registered NBRSA match previously, a 
complimentary temporary membership card will be issued to the shooter with an expiration 
date of December 31 of the year that the card is received. The new competitor can then 
compete in as many NBRSA matches as they choose before their temporary card expires.  
The new competitor will be eligible to win awards and set records during this temporary 
membership period.  Mr. Duke made a motion to accept the item as written.  Mr. Shipley 
second the motion.  Mr. Conry called for discussion.  Mrs. Campbell asked for the floor.  
She asked the question “is this for all new members joining the NBRSA”? “What is the 
criteria”?  She stated that when the new business management program was written, only 
members or past members who had joined in the last 5 years were transferred.  She stated 
this would be very difficult for her to determine whether this was officially there first ever 
match.  

She also asked so “what if a new member is not aware this if being offered and sends in the 
$85.00 membership fee”?  Would you all want me to return their money and issue them 
temporary cards?  Mr. Duke took the floor back and stated they had not thought about the 
issues with the bookkeeping end of it.  He stated maybe we should forget this idea.  Mrs. 
Campbell stated she is not against the idea there just are some issues that need to be worked 
out.  Mr. Moore took the floor and stated we cannot make a mess out of this for her.  Mr. 
Reagin took the floor and stated he liked the idea.  He stated he would hope this would draw 
in new members.  Mr. Conry agreed this might entice new people to join.  

Mr. Zaccanti took the floor and questioned allowing them to set world records.  Mr. Reagin 
stated he did not agree either with allowing them to set world records.  Mr. Shipley took the 
floor and stated he likes the idea, that this would help the competitor since they have to pay 
their entry fees.  Mr. Conry stated that there is a range out there that has a policy.  If a 
competitor, if this is their first match, they pay for a membership for that competitor.  Mr. 
Zaccanti says he likes the idea but we have to be able to track it.  Mr. Conry says maybe we 
need to modify the motion to clarify who is eligible.  Mr. Shipley thinks we need to do 
whatever we have to do to draw in new competitors.  Mr. Conry asked Mr. Duke to modify 
his motion.  Mr. Duke then amended the motion to read: Extend complimentary 
membership to new shooters. It would be for someone who wants to shoot in a NBRSA 
match and has never shot in a registered NBRSA match previously, a complimentary 
temporary membership card will be issued to the shooter with an expiration date of 
December 31 of the year that the card is received. The new competitor can then 
compete in as many NBRSA matches as they choose before their temporary card 
expires.  The new competitor will be eligible to win awards and set records during this 
temporary membership period.  The match directors will be responsible for identifying 
these members for the business office. Mr. Shipley second the motion.  Mr. Zaccanti 



 14 

asked if the member got the magazine?  Mr. Duke said this would be a full membership 
which would include the magazine.  Mr. Conry called for a vote. Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, Mr. 
Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti and Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  Motion passed 
unanimously.   
 
Mr. Conry thanked Mr. Duke for his item.  He then called on Mr. Jim Shipley to proceed with 
his agenda items.  Mr. Shipley stated he did not have any agenda items. 

Mid-Continent Region Agenda items:  

None  
 
Mr. Conry called on Mr. Bud Mundy , Mississippi Valley Region Director to proceed with 
his agenda items.  Mr. Mundy stated he did not have any agenda items. 
 
Mississippi Valley Region Agenda items:  
 
None  
 
Mr. Conry stated that Mr. Chris Harris, North Central Region Director was not present and 
did not have any agenda items.    
 
North Central Agenda items:  
 
None  
 
Mr. Conry called on Mr. Dan Zaccanti Northwest Region Director to proceed with his agenda 
items.  Mr. Zaccanti took the floor and read his first item.   
 
Northwest Region Agenda Items:   

1). Current Operating Procedure: The Group Record Chairman receives a $200 yearly 
reimbursement fee for expenses related to the handling of targets submitted for records.  

Proposed Change: Each of the Record Committee Chairs (Group, Score & Long Range) 
receive the same yearly stipend for expenses related to the handling of targets submitted for 
records. Submitted by Jeff Locke.   

He stated that once the long range world record chairman found out the group record 
chairman gets this money he wanted it too.  He stated that he explained to Mr. Locke that all 
directors and chairman spend money out of their pocket.  He also continued informing the 
board that since most or all of the LR world record committee are present at the matches, 
they usually score the world record while they are at the match and don’t have to spend any 
postage money.  He continued saying that if they have an expense then they can send the 



 15 

receipt to the business office to be reimbursed.  Mr. Zaccanti does not think they need to get 
paid for this but he is representing his region. Mr. Zaccanti made the motion that all 
chairmen get paid.  The motion died for a lack of a second.  Mr. Zaccanti read his next 
item: 

Existing Rule(s):  

2). 1.7.1.6  There can be one or two targets per frame for record targets. Ample distance 
should be    between targets to ensure that a miss or crossfire does not show up the adjacent 
target.  

3) 1.7.1.7  If two targets per frame are used, a second sighter and record target are shot prior 
to the collection of targets.  

Proposed Update/Change:  

1.7.1.6  There can be multiple targets per frame for record targets. Ample distance should be 
between targets to ensure that a miss or crossfire does not show up on the adjacent target. 
Submitted by Jeff Locke. 

1.7.1.7  If multiple targets per frame are used, the appropriate sighter period is shot prior to 
each record target. The collection of targets commences once all record targets have been 
shot. Submitted by Jeff Locke. 

Mr. Mundy asked for the floor and asked if this was the only range that does this?  Mr. 
Zaccanti says he is not sure what the other 600 yard range uses.  Mr. Mundy stated he does 
not like approving a change for just one range because it affects all ranges.  Mr. Zaccanti 
made a motion to allow the verbiage changes. Mr. Moore second.  Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, 
Mr. Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti and Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  Motion 
passed unanimously.  Mr. Zaccanti read his next item: 
 
4) Move all fees that can be charged / collected by the NBRSA or the Club to a single fee 
page for all shooting discipline. (This will make updating any and all fee easier when there is 
a change) Submitted by Dan Zaccanti  
 
Mr. Zaccanti says there are fees all over the place in the rulebook.  Mr. Zaccanti made a 
motion that we remove all fees from the rulebook and make a separate page that list all 
the fees in an itemized style.  Mr. Zaccanti says this way when the board makes changes to 
the fees, the membership would not have to approve it. Mr. Conry agrees we should get them 
uniform. Mr. Conry says it would make it easier and it does not have to go to the membership 
then it becomes an administrative issue. Mr. Moore took the floor and agreed that they are all 
over the place and the board could handle these issues.  Mr. Reagin second the motion.  Mr. 
Zaccanti suggested creating a new section outlining fees.  Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, Mr. 



 16 

Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti and Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  Motion passed 
unanimously. Mr. Zaccanti read his next item: 
 
5). Make a page that lists all rule changes that are in the probationary period in the front of 
the rules. (This will allow ranges to be able to print out the rule changes that the board 
approved and are currently in the trial period. The NBRSA currently does not make changes 
to the rules or list them except in the Board MTG minutes, tell after the general membership 
has voted on them at the following year’s meeting.) Submitted by Dan Zaccanti.  
 
Mr. Zaccanti made a motion to make a page that lists all rule changes that are in the 
probationary period in the front of the rulebook.  Mr. Zaccanti stated that the members do 
not know when things are changed and in the trial period because they do not read the 
minutes.  Mr. Moore took the floor and asked where would this new page go? Mr. Conry 
stated it would be a new section.  Mr. Zaccanti suggested it go right in front of the start of the 
rulebook. Mr. Mundy is not sure if they will see it there.  Mr. Reagin second the motion.  
Mr. Conry called for a vote. Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti 
and Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. Mr. Zaccanti read his 
last item: 
 
6). Have a committee read through the rules and make suggestions to clear up rules that can 
be twisted, (i.e. tournament, matches) Submitted by Dan Zaccanti.  Mrs. Campbell asked 
for the floor.  She stated that she had talked to a match director the day before who 
volunteered to do this over the winter.  He too had noticed there were things that needed to 
be fixed.  She said she needed to check back to see if he is willing to do this.  This was 
tabled until Wednesday’s meeting.    
 
Mr. Conry called on Mr. Wayne Moore, Southeast Region Director to proceed with his 
agenda items.  Mr. Moore stated he did not have any agenda items. 
 
Southeast Region Agenda items:  
 
None 
 
Mr. Conry stated that Mr. Barry Bluhm, Southwest Region Director was not present.  He 
stated that they did not have any agenda items.   
 
Southwest Region Agenda items: 
 
None 
 



 17 

Mr. Conry stated he did not have any items to present. 
President’s items: 
 
None 
 
Mr. Conry stated there was one more matter to be discussed. Mr. Bill Mueser makes our 
Score scoring reticles and had talked to Mrs. Campbell about an issue in getting a certain 
part.  Since the board approved the previous design he needed board approval to use a 
different part when making these. Mr. Conry passed around the old design and the new 
design reticle. He stated that there was no problem with the new design.  Mrs. Campbell took 
the floor and stated she had sent one of the new designs to one of the Score match directors 
and he had stated that the design did not affect the scoring.  Mr. Zaccanti made the motion 
to accept the new design Score reticle.  Mr. Duke second the motion. Mr. Reagin, Mr. 
Duke, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti and Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  
Motion passed unanimously. Mrs. Campbell asked for the floor and stated she had a request 
from another member to start producing these scoring devices.  After a short discussion, 
board members agreed it was no reason to change.  
 
Mr. Conry moved to the next item for discussion.  He read the following list. 
 

 
Bids for 2026/2027 National Events 

 
2026 Group Nationals – Holton Gun Club has submitted a bid for the 2026 Group 
Nationals.  A motion was made by Mr. Potts to approve Holton Gun Club as hosts of the 
2026 group Nationals.  Mr. Conry second the motion.  Mr. Harris, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Ross, 
Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Potts, Mr. Sosenko, Mr. Conry, and Mr. Shipley all voted in favor of the 
motion.  Motion passed unanimously.     
 
Mr. Conry announced that the dates will be August 24-29, 2026.  Mr. Reagin made a 
motion to accept these dates.  Mr. Moore second the motion.  Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, Mr. 
Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti and Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
2027 Group Nationals -The bid was presented by Rio Grande Benchrest Shooters.  Mr. 
Conry read the bid. Rio Grande Benchrest Shooters would like to bid the group nationals for 
mid to late September 2027(Sept 20-25) If bid is accepted, we will get with the Whittington 
Center to set dates officially. Practice Days could be 16-19(subject to change on needs) This 
match would be held at the NRA Whittington Center just outside Raton NM. This is a 
beautiful facility.  We will configure the range depending on the number of shooters. Due to 
the higher-than-normal fees charged by the Whittington Center, our bid is contingent on the 
Board approving fees to cover those and any other presently unknown costs. We anticipate 



 18 

having these issues quantified by the time of the 2026 NBRSA board meeting in Holton. 
Thank you for your consideration. Submitted by Dennis Martin. 
 
Mr. Conry says he knows there are questions about the fees. He then called on Mr. Ed 
Adams, Mid Continent Regional Director-Elect to explain. Mr. Adams stated that because 
they do not live there they have to import target crews and house them plus the $20 per day 
per shooter that the Whittington Center charges the range.  He stated they are looking for 
some leniency so that they can charge the extra cost to host the match.  He stated that the 
range can’t lose money.  He informed the board they already have a number of people who 
have said they would help.  They have a scorer and computer person.  It’s not in the summer 
so they can’t use the target crew they use in the summer because they will be back in school, 
so they will have to use adults which will cost more of course and will have to house them.  
He continued saying that the number of shooters will have a big impact.  80 shooters 
significantly changes the finances over 100. He continued saying we will bring more 
information after they find out how many sponsors they get to help.  He continued explaining 
how the range is set up.  He commented it’s a great facility. He stated there are lots of hotels, 
some older.  He stated there is plenty of camping (120 spots) but that it is about ½ to ¾ of 
mile from the range.  He stated there is power only in the parking lot.  He stated that if you 
plan to attend and camp you need to book by the first of February.    He asked if there were 
any questions.  Mr. Campbell asked if there was a fee to practice.  He said one day is free but 
any additional days it would be $25.00 a day or you can join the Whittington Center for 
$50.00 and then no limit.  They do have an indoor loading facility.  He said September will 
be cool in the evening gorgeous in the day.  He explained the shooting conditions.   
 
Mr. Duke took the floor and said he has shot there and it is fabulous range. He stated it is 
expensive. Mr. Adams took the floor back and stated they would claim target fees to help 
with the fees.  Mr. Campbell says it’s best to expose the costs up front so the competitors 
have no surprises when they get there.  Mr. Reagin took the floor and stated that Fairchance 
Gun Club in his region is interested in hosting the 2027 Nationals but he thinks they need to 
hold off until 2028. He said he would love to go to Raton but he wants to see some numbers 
as for costs.  Mr. Conry asked for questions.  Mr. Reagin commented again that he wants to 
see the money that it is going to cost the competitors.  Mr. Shipley asked if any companies 
would sponsor?  Mr. Adams stated the Mr. Jack Neary has offered to make a few calls on 
their behalf.   
 
Mr. Conry took the floor back and stated that it is 2 years out, they are looking for something 
definitive so they can move forward.  Mr. Campbell says it’s not what we think, it’s what the 
competitors think and can afford.  He continued saying by next year we will have some 
competitor feedback.  Mr. Reagin says that would need some disposition from the board to 
charge more than the normal fees.  Mr. Reagin stated that the $20.00 in daily fees would go 
Whittington and the club gets none of that.  Mr. Adams thinks the fees for the cabin would be 
around $2100 in housing but then you have to feed them.  Mr. Zaccanti made a motion to 
accept their bid with the terms they have listed with final approval at the 2026 Board 



 19 

meeting.  Mr. Duke second the motion. Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Mundy, 
Mr. Zaccanti and Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
2026 Short Range Score Nationals - Bid submitted by Casper Shooters Club, Casper, 
Wyoming to host the 2026 Short Range Score Nationals.  The dates will be August 4-7, 2026. 
Mr. Conry read the bid.  Mr. Conry stated that they have hosted NBRSA matches before but 
have not been active in recent years but did rejoin.   Mr. Conry called on Mr. Duke who has 
been working with this range. Mr. Duke stated the Mr. Mosteler is motivated and wants to 
host this match.  He stated that he has not shot there before.  Mr. Zaccanti says if it’s still the 
same range he is thinking, it has a nice reloading area but the only issue is the benches are 
very close together.  Mr. Reagin made a motion to approve Casper Shooters Club as the 
host of the 2026 SR Score Nationals.  Mr. Moore second the motion.   Mr. Reagin, Mr. 
Duke, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti and Mr. Moore all voted for the motion.  
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
2027 Short Range Score Nationals - Mr. Conry announced no bids have been submitted. 
 
2026 600 yard Long Range Nationals - Mr. Conry announced no bids have been submitted. 
 
2027 600 yard Long Range Nationals - Mr. Conry announced no bids have been submitted. 

 
Mr. Conry asked if there was any other business before he closes the meeting.  Mr. Moore 
made a motion to recess until Wednesday, September 17, 2025. Mr. Zaccanti second the 
motion. Mr. Reagin, Mr. Duke, Mr. Shipley, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Zaccanti and Mr. Moore all 
voted for the motion.  Motion passed unanimously 
  
Meeting adjourned at 2:05 pm CST.   
 
Recessed until Wednesday, September 17, 2025.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Pam Campbell 
Pam Campbell 
Secretary, NBRSA 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
The General Membership meeting was called to order at 1:31pm CST on September 17, 
2025 by President, Mr. Mike Conry. 
 



 20 

Mr. Conry opened the meeting by thanking all the members for attending the meeting.  He 
stated that he became President on February 1, 2025 and hopes to serve the NBRSA 
membership well.   
 
Mr. Conry stated the first item for discussion was from the annual Board of Directors 
meeting on Saturday, September 13, 2025. 
 
Mr. Conry stated Mr. Neary did find some very nice target paper.  The cost would be very 
attractive at $.18 plus shipping a target. We would need to purchase 44,000 per year.  Mr. 
Campbell took the floor and said he sees no need to change.   Mr. Conry stated that overall 
the company we have dealt with for years has been great to work with.  He informed the 
members that we are having a few issues with the sizing cut of the targets but we are working 
on those issues.   
 
Mr. Conry introduced Mr. Brian Robinson as our new Social Media Manager and is doing a 
good job.  He continued saying he is adding links to the website and facebook with benchrest 
related content from the internet and has started a “throwback Thursday” from older 
magazines that he thinks members would enjoy. 
 
Mr. Conry turned the floor over to Mr. Wayne Campbell, International Representative, to 
give his report.  Mr. Campbell took the floor and told the members that WBC-17 would be 
held immediately following the Nationals by the Bench Rest Club of St. Louis, in Wright 
City, MO. He told the members that the USA had 3 strong teams and all should do well in the 
championship.  He introduced the USA team members. He called on Mr. Rick Pollock to 
introduce his Canadian team who were also our NBRSA members.   Mr. Campbell told the 
members that changes with Phoenix not hosting NBRSA matches would change the 
qualifying location of some qualifying matches for next year for WBC-18.  He told the 
members that Mr. Mike Conry had agreed to host a match at his range, Midland Shooters 
Assoc. and that would give the west coast side a replacement range.   
 
He also told them that Holton Gun Club wanted to host a qualifier.  He said he did not see a 
problem with adding them and that would give the east coast 3 qualifiers and the west coast 3 
qualifiers. He stated his recommendation had been to allow Dublin, GA, Fairchance, PA, 
Holton, MI, St. Louis, MO, Raton, NM and Midland, TX to host the 2026 qualifying matches 
and the Board approved these changes.  They will be set at 60 points at these matches.  He 
stated with the cost of traveling it would help all the competitors but it would still be the best 
two (2) out of 6 matches plus the Nationals.  He informed the members that we will be taking 
out 2 full page ads giving dates and rules in the coming months in the magazine to avoid any 
misunderstandings of which matches are qualifiers.   
 
Mr. Campbell told the members that the actual location of the WBC-18 would not be decided 
until Sunday when the International Representatives met. He thanked the members for their 
support of the teams. 
 



 21 

Mr. Conry went over the financial report submitted by Mr. Chris Harris.  He stated that 
membership dues are down by 12% with a decline of $8K over the last period.  This is likely 
in tandem with shooter activity and the fact we cut the cost over half for our member clubs.   
 
He stated that the professional fees have increased very little (3%) so this does not contribute 
much to the decline in profitability. 
 
He stated we are faced with a $31K decline in net income this year resulting in a loss of $8K.  
We earned interest of $9K (35% up from 2024). 
 
The balance sheet is once again sound.  We have no debt with $205,000 in net cash which is 
$8k less than this time last year. Mr. Conry asked if there were any questions.  
 
Mr. Conry announced he would be resigning as the Group World Record Committee 
Chairman.  He stated he had reached out to Mr. Bob Scarbrough about the position and he 
was very much interested and willing to serve in that capacity. The board approved this and 
will allow him to replace Mr. Lowell Frei and Mr. John Horn members of the committee that 
wish to resign also due to various reasons. He asked the members to be sure to thank these 
guys for their service. 
 
Mr. Conry informed the members that the Long Range World Record Committee Chairman, 
Mr. Jeff Locke had only accepted the position for a 1 year term but is willing to continue in 
that capacity.  The board approved his appointment for another 1 year term. 
 
He moved on to this year’s agenda items.  Mr. Conry told the members that the board 
approved a motion to extend complimentary membership to new shooters. It would be for 
someone who wants to shoot in a NBRSA match and has never shot in a registered NBRSA 
match previously, a complimentary temporary membership card will be issued to the shooter 
with an expiration date of December 31 of the year that the card is received. The new 
competitor can then compete in as many NBRSA matches as they choose before their 
temporary card expires.  The new competitor will be eligible to win awards and set records 
during this temporary membership period.  The match directors will be responsible for 
identifying these members for the business office. 
 
Mr. Conry informed the members that the board approved a motion to have all changes to 
rules and by-laws be highlighted on the website for one year following their entry into the 
rulebook.  
 
He continued informing the members that the board approved removing all fees from the 
rulebook and make a separate page that lists all fee in an itemized style. 
 
He stated that the board approved to make a page that lists all rule changes that are in the 
trial period in the front of the rulebook to make it easier for the match directors and members 
to find the changes rather than read the minutes. 
 



 22 

Mr. Conry moved to the next item of business.  He stated that he had a few items that had 
been in place for a year and now needed the general membership to vote as to whether they 
wanted to change the rule or not. 
 
He read the first item to be discussed at the 2025 General Membership meeting (under one 
year trial period): 

Gulf Coast Region: 
 
2). Last years Agenda item # 2:  The second request is that the NBRSA consider removal of 
the requirement that the bottom of the Hunter rifle’s stock be convex.  
 
The current rule reads as follows:11.1.3.1. Stocks must not be over 2 1⁄4 inches wide and 
convex on all bottom surfaces.  
 
Rather than removing the requirement of “convex on all bottom surfaces”. I suggest the rule 
be changed to be consistent with the definition of Heavy Varmint rifle. Which would change 
the rule to read as follows.  
 
11.1.3. Hunter Rifle Definitions: 11.1.3.1. Stocks must not be over 2 1⁄4 inches wide and be 
flat or convex on all bottom surfaces.  
 
This is a simple rule change and I wouldn’t think would need much discussion. Submitted 
by Joe E. Duke 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Doug Thompson and second by Mr. Ed Adams. Mr. Conry 
called for a show of hands by all in favor. He then asked for a show of hands against the 
motion. There were no objections.  The motion passed.  He announced it will now be added 
to the rulebook.  
 
Mr. Conry read the next item to be discussed at the 2025 General Membership meeting 
(under one year trial period): 

Northwest Region: 
 
Last years Agenda item # 3: The current definition of what constitutes a legal muzzle brake 
leaves some ambiguity and some of the new 90 degree ported brakes are still disruptive to 
the shooters next to these brakes. The LR shooters voted unanimously to change the rule 
regarding muzzle brakes (what constitutes a legal muzzle brake). 

a. Current rule: 

2.3: Muzzle brakes may be used, but they may not be of a"clamshell" or any other design 
that exits gases to the rear.   



 23 

b. Proposed change: 

2.3: Muzzle brakes may be used, but they may only be of "radial" design. Radial muzzle 
brakes are round with round holes drilled (perpendicular to the bore) all the way around the 
circumference of the brake. The round holes on a radial brake may not exit gases to the rear. 
Submitted by Richard Jette 

 

Mr. Woodward asked for discussion. Mr. Woodward asked for a motion to approve the 
change as proposed for a one year trial period.  Motion was made to approve the change as 
proposed for a one year trial period by Mr. Harris second by Mr. Conry.  Mr. Harris, 
Mr. Mundy, Mr. Ross, Mr. Zaccanti, Mr. Potts, Mr. Sosenko, Mr. Conry, and Mr. Shipley all 
voted in favor of the motion.  Motion passed unanimously.   

Motion was made by Mr. Wayne Campbell to accept the motion.  Mr. Scott Young 
second the motion.  Mr. Conry called for a show of hands by all in favor. He then asked for 
a show of hands against the motion. There were no objections.  The motion passed.  He 
announced it will now be added to the rulebook.  
Mr. Conry stated that concluded all the business he had.  He opened the floor to the 
membership. With no response from the members, he asked all the members to go out on the 
range for a group picture.   
 
Mr. Conry asked for a motion to adjourn.  Mr. Scott Young made a motion to adjourn.  
Mr. Ed Adams second the motion.  All members voted for the motion.  Motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
Meeting was adjourned at 1:50 pm CST. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Pam Campbell 
Pam Campbell 
Secretary, NBRSA 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
The continued Meeting of the Board of Directors reconvened at 2:09 pm CST on Wednesday, 
September 17, 2025 and was called to order by Mr. Mike Conry, President. In attendance 
were: 



 24 

 
Mike Conry, President 

Wayne Campbell, Vice President 
Pam Campbell, Secretary 

Pat Reagin, Eastern Regional Director 
Joe Duke, Gulf Coast Regional Director 

Bud Mundy, Mississippi Valley Alternate Regional Director 
Wayne Moore, Southeast Alternate Regional Director 
Ed Adams, Mid-Continent Regional Director – Elect 

 
Mr. Conry thanked the board for their attendance.  He opened the meeting with the first item 
of business: 
 
He passed out the Long Range World Record Committee that was submitted by Mr. Jeff 
Locke, Committee Chairman. He stated the report was not received until the day after the 
regular meeting therefore he was presenting it today. He read the report:  2 Records were set 
during the 2024 600 Yard Nationals (September 2024). These records were submitted and 
the LR Measuring Committee approved these records by Mid-October. I submitted the 
records to the NBRSA office – but since I wasn’t officially appointed LR WRCommittee 
Chair by the Board, the BOD voted to accept the records as submitted on 10/26/2024. 
 
Another LR Record was shot at the NBRSA 600 Yard match held at TCGC on October 27, 
2024. The LR measuring committee verified and sent along the record to the NBRSA office 
within 45 days. 
  
Mr.  Conry stated there was one item continued from the Board meeting on September 13, 
2025.   
 
He stated it was one of the agenda items that Mr. Dan Zaccanti had submitted.  The item was 
to have a committee read through the rules and make suggestions to clear up rules that can be 
twisted, (i.e. tournament, matches) Submitted by Dan Zaccanti.  Mrs. Campbell asked for 
the floor.  Mr. Conry called on her for the update.   She stated that she had talked to a match 
director the day before who volunteered to do this over the winter.  He too had noticed there 
were things that needed to be fixed.  She said she needed to check back to see if he is willing 
to do this, therefore it was tabled.  
 
She said she had reached back out to Mr. Harry Ward, Match Director at the Bench Rest Club 
of St. Louis and he is willing to do this over the winter.  She asked what procedure would the 
board like to use to make the changes he comes up with. Mr. Reagin suggested the Mr. Ward 
send the results of his project to Mr. Conry.  He will review and then send to the Board for 
review.  If they require a meeting to discuss he will call a board meeting.    
 



 25 

Mr. Conry thanked Mr. Dan Zaccanti and Mr. Don Creach for their service and welcomed 
Mr. Ed Adams and Mr. Eric Stanton.  
     
With no further business, a motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Reagin,  second was 
made by Mr. Duke.  Mr. Reagin, Mr. Moore, Mr. Mundy, Mr. Duke all voted for the motion.  
Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Meeting was adjourned at 2:42 pm CST. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/Pam Campbell 
Pam Campbell 
Secretary, NBRSA 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

 
MEMBERSHIP TREND COMPARISON FOR 2024 AND 2025 

 
2024 Domestic Intl Total  2025 Domestic Intl Total 

Jan 1081 32 1113  Jan 1037 28 1065 
Feb 1072 32 1104  Feb 1021 26 1047 
Mar 1056 31 1087  Mar 1002 25 1027 
Apr 1030 31 1061  Apr 1002 26 1028 
May 1018 30 1048  May 945 24 969 
June 998 30 1028  June 918 25 943 
July 980 29 1009  July 902 24 926 
Aug 969 29 998  Aug 868 24 892 
Sept 1005 27 1032  Sept    
Oct 1069 31 1100  Oct    
Nov 1063 31 1094  Nov    
Dec 1056 31 1087  Dec    
3.4% increase over YTD 2023      
 
NOTICE of location of membership list: 
 
The list of all members name and their place of residence resides with the Business 
Manager in the Business Office located at the following mailing address:  NBRSA, Inc. 
P O Box 349, Concord, VA  24538 (434) 993-9201. 
 
Financials presented at the Board of Directors and Membership meeting are on file in 
the Business Office and are available upon written request. Due to security reasons, 
they are not posted on the website. 


